
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
to be held on

TUESDAY, 18 JULY 2017
at

10.30 AM
in

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Committee Members:
Councillor Mike Exton (Chairman)
Councillor Bob Russell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Lynda Coutts
Councillor Nick Craft
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Martin Wilkins

Invited Cabinet Members:
Councillor Kelham Cooke, Deputy Leader of the Council
Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Communications and Engagement
Councillor Michael King, Cabinet Member for Economy and Development
Councillor Matthew Lee, Leader of the Council
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Environment
Councillor Nick Neilson, Cabinet Member for Communities and Wellbeing
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy
Councillor Jacky Smith, Cabinet Member for Major Development Projects
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Support Officer: Anita Eckersley        Tel: 01476 40 60 80 (Extn: 6517)
                                                              E-mail: a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Panel’s discretion.

mailto:a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk


2. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3. APOLOGIES

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

5. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 23 MAY 2017

(Enclosure)

6. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

7. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REMITS

Report LDS223 of the Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

(Enclosure)

8. CONSIDERATION OF THE POTENTIAL WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To consider the potential work programme for the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

(Enclosure)

9. BIG CLEAN

A verbal update will be provided to the Committee on the Big Clean.

10. TRADE WASTE

A verbal update will be provided to the Committee on Trade Waste.

11. STREET LIGHTING

Report FM0007 of the Cabinet Member for Environment on Street Lighting.
(Enclosure)

12. CLEAN AIR

For the Committee to receive a presentation on Clean Air.

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT





ACTION NOTES
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 23 MAY 2017

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Lynda Coutts
Councillor Mike Exton (Chairman)
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Bob Russell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Martin Wilkins

OTHER MEMBERS
Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor Peter Moseley )
Cabinet Member for Communications and Engagement (Councillor Helen Goral)
Leader and Cabinet Member for HR and Cultural Services (Councillor Matthew Lee)
Cabinet Member for Retail and Economy (Councillor Nick Robins)
Cabinet Member for Major Development Projects (Councillor Jacky Smith)
Cabinet Member for Finance (Councillor Adam Stokes)
Cabinet Member for Communities and Wellbeing (Councillor Rosemary Woolley)
Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Nick Craft

OFFICERS
Strategic Director Commercial (Daren Turner)
Strategic Director Environment and Property (Tracey Blackwell)
Executive Manager Environment (Ian Yates)
Business Manager Street Care Services (Keith Rowe)
Business Manager Neighbourhoods (Mark Jones)
Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer (Carol Drury)
Civic and Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

OBSERVING
Performance and Programme Management Team (Samantha Pearson)
Project and Performance Co-ordinator (Amber Lock)

1. APOLOGIES

The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.

No Apologies had been received.

Page - 4

Agenda Item 5



2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest to note.

3. CONSIDERATION OF THE REMIT AND WORK PROGRAMME OF THE 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Executive Manager Environment explained that the presentation was 
meant to be a starting point that would help set the scene and highlight topics 
for consideration for the committee’s work programme.

Reference was made to the two main areas of focus in the Corporate Plan:

“Open for Business” – The aim was to put the customer at the heart of 
everything the Council did.  Areas would need to be aesthetically pleasing in 
order to develop and provide an environment where people felt safe and 
comfortable and would want to live, work and invest which would in turn 
encourage business growth and investment.  

“Commercially and Customer Focussed” – The aim was to continue to improve 
the effective use of the Council’s resources taking into account customer insight 
and intelligence which would inform future service delivery models.  The 
Council also had to ensure it was working towards being self-sufficient by 2019 
and had to continue to look at ways of achieving this.

The Council also had to take in to account current National and regional drivers 
such as the National Air Quality Strategy, the Food Standards Agency (FSA), 
Litter Strategy for England and the Lincolnshire Municipal Waste Strategy. 

The remit of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee would have a 
fundamental role in overseeing and helping to develop the required future 
strategies and policies to deliver the Council’s priorities more effectively in the 
above areas.

Aspects under Environmental Health also included food inspections, food 
standards, regulating for the future, raising awareness and reducing the burden 
on businesses.  The Lincolnshire Municipal Waste Strategy would need to be 
on the work programme and Committee would receive a report on progress at a 
future meeting.

Reference was then made to the extensive remit under the Cabinet Member for 
Environment and how these would help provide some ideas for topics to be 
included in the work programme. The Big Clean was on the agenda today in 
order to put forward a new initiative.  Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) 
was also on the agenda today but other areas would emerge as the year 
progressed.

The Chair noted the amount of potential work and highlighted the need for 
street lighting to be an item for the next meeting of the Committee.  Another 
area that was being highlighted by Government was the Clean Air Policy.

Page - 5



Discussion took place around working with parish councils and the feasibility of 
devolving budgets, whether the Committee’s remit could include the 
management of play equipment, hare coursing and whether work could be 
undertaken to develop a strategy to encourage volunteer groups.

Resolved: That the presentation is noted

Action Point: That Street Lighting to be included on the agenda for the next 
meeting.

4. CONSIDERATION OF ANY MEMBER TRAINING NEEDS TO SUPPORT THE 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members were advised that generic overview and scrutiny training had taken 
place earlier in May 2017.  If Members wanted a copy the slides from the 
training, these could be obtained from the Community Engagement and Policy 
Development Officer. The next relevant training session for scrutiny members 
was on 24 July 2017 and would cover research methods and questioning skills. 

Members were asked to inform the Community Engagement and Policy 
Development Officer if they had any training requirements specific to the remit 
of the Committee.

Councillor Morgan arrived at 10.40am 

A Member queried how the Development Control Committee and the 
Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee would link together in respect 
of encouraging and promoting developments that used sustainable and 
renewable resources.  

Members were in formed that the Development Control Committee was not in a 
position to enforce the use of sustainable resources or put conditions on 
planning applications. A previous scheme called Merton Rule had enabled the 
potential to impose a requirement on sites to generate at least 10% of their 
energy needs using “on site renewable energy equipment” but these were for 
large industrial estates but this was no longer used.  

The Chair noted that as this meeting was the initial meeting of the Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee it was too soon to go into the intricate depth 
of each area the Committee might cover.  Committee Members were being 
asked to highlight overarching topics that might be included on the work 
programme as well as identify any potential training needs.  

Resolved:  That the points raised were noted.

5. BIG CLEAN

The Cabinet Member for Environment referred to the ambivalence there 
appeared to be to the cleanliness of the District and noted that the Council was 
entering challenging times and would be in strong competition with 
neighbouring authorities.  He explained how the main aim of the Big Clean was 

Page - 6



to improve and create an attractive street scene in South Kesteven that would 
be easily maintained and encourage people to have pride in their local 
community. The following presentation would take into account where the 
Council was now and where the Council wanted to be.  It was noted that to 
maintain higher standards going forward it was important to undertake a “step 
change” making it easier to maintain. 

The Executive Manager Environment referred to an overriding objective which 
was to encourage economic growth.  He noted that a key element in achieving 
this would be the attractiveness of the District. The Council would be in 
competition with other towns and locations and as such would need to attain 
and maintain higher standards of cleansing that created a pleasant 
environment that appealed to investors, residents and visitors. Investment 
would be required to achieve a higher standard of cleaning but this should, in 
turn, encourage growth and further investment into the District.

Although litter was not a major problem the current overall appearance of the 
streets could be at best described as “average” mainly due to the increased 
level of weeds and detritus.   Many pavements, road signs and items of street 
furniture required cleansing. Attractiveness of an area was valued by residents, 
with clean streets ranking in the top 5 issues of importance.

One of the main key cost drivers to delivering an improved standard was the 
size of the district.  The existing operational service was not designed to deliver 
the full scope of the new standard across the 365 square miles of the District.  
Although national standards were currently being achieved, Council resources 
would need to be utilised to maximum effect and efficiency.   

In order to compete and attract investment, a significant improvement in the 
appearance of the District would need to be achieved. Performance would be 
measured through a District Standard rather than defaulting to the national 
standards which were lower. The ever increasing challenges and changes 
faced by all local authorities meant that competition between local authorities 
would be fierce especially where authorities were marketing their town centres 
as having a very high standard for the visitor experience.  It would be important 
that the high standards of cleansing were maintained.  The project would invest 
in mechanical plant together with additional staffing resources. The benefits of 
using mechanical plant would provide improved efficiencies, higher levels of 
final finish, create higher visibility which would help raise awareness of the 
project and would ensure value for money and create a higher standard. 

There were a number of volunteer groups out there that undertook regular 
clean up operations and the Council would need to be more proactive in 
engaging with these groups, volunteer networks and Town and Parish 
Councils.  These organisations, residents and Ward Members would be key to 
ensuring resources were targeted wisely. Further proactive joint working with 
partner organisations with their own responsibilities such as Lincolnshire 
County Council (LCC) Highways would also be required. 

Raising awareness of the project would be key in promoting the district and 
achieving essential levels of public and business sector support. The 
Community Cleaner Grant Scheme would also need to be reviewed in order to 

Page - 7



evaluate the potential impact of local parish councils becoming more involved.

The options for consideration were based around the time taken to deliver the 
one off project, the locations, the number of streets to be treated and the ability 
to maintain the higher standard on an ongoing basis. Each of the options had 
been evaluated against the level of impact, the levels of risk and the perceived 
value for money against the level of investment. The key options to be 
considered were:

Option 1 - Undertake a big clean of entire district within a 6 week period
Option 2 - An intelligence based, targeted approach
Option 3 – General increase in the ongoing level of service provision

A new Appendix 2 was tabled providing more clarity on the Risk log and better 
aligned it with the options in Appendix 1. 

Members were provided with a brief summary of the risks of each option.  

Option 1 would require large scale investment for a one off return;
Option 2 provided the best balance in terms of value for money and impact; 
Option 3 would provide minimal immediate step change.

The preferred Option 2 would utilise project management methodologies.  The 
project management and supervision would be supported from within the 
Council’s existing resources which meant a back filling of posts would be 
required. Normal cleansing routines would continue to be delivered. 

The step change meant that there would be four temporary teams out in the 
areas for initial impact over a shorter period of time supported by one new 
permanent team.  A further additional team would eventually be in place to 
assist in maintaining the standards going forward.

The Cabinet Member for Finance informed Members that the initial stage of the 
project would be funded from the existing Reserves as the current years’ 
budget had been approved and finalised.  Future funding would be set out in 
the budgets for forthcoming years.  Lincolnshire Procurement would assist with 
the preparatory work regarding the procurement of equipment once an option 
had been agreed by Council.

The Chair emphasised that the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
was being asked to consider whether the scheme should be implemented and 
not go into the detail of what work and areas the teams would be covering.

Discussion took place around timelines for the implementation of the scheme, 
the period of time it would run for, types of work being undertaken by the 
teams, response times, how areas with persistent issues would be tackled, 
whether agency workers would be using the plant machinery, provide schools 
and other educational establishments with information around caring for the 
environment and the overall impact of litter and detritus.

Other issues discussed were safety issues along some of the footpaths due to 
poor lighting, dealing with fly tipping, whether agency staff would be out in the 

Page - 8



areas or back filling posts.

The Chair proposed the recommendation which was seconded by Councillor 
Wilkins and the Committee voted.

The vote was carried in favour with 1 abstention.

Recommendation:

That in order to achieve a step change in the attractiveness of the street scene 
throughout South Kesteven the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
supports and recommends that Option 2 is agreed which includes the following 
areas:

a) That a Big Clean initiative is undertaken over a 3 month period;
b) That the work specification is set to achieve a higher street standard (i.e. 

removal of all weeds, washing of street furniture, removal of graffiti as 
detailed in the report)

c) That Members and officers develop a South Kesteven “street scene 
standard”; 

d) That ongoing investment is made to maintain the higher street standard;
e) That volunteers are actively encouraged and supported to contribute to 

the improvements;
f) That the community cleaner grant budget is increased and promoted; and
g) That a communications strategy is developed and implemented to support 

the changes.

6. PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS

The Cabinet Member for Environment explained that the following item would 
provide Members with an over view of recent changes to Public Space 
Protection Orders which would provide authorities with more effective ways of 
dealing with anti-social behaviour.  

The Business Manager, Neighbourhoods informed Members that the report 
was for information only at this stage.  He explained that a range of simplified 
but more effective powers to tackle anti-social behaviour had recently been 
introduced.  These powers would enable local authorities to act in a more 
responsive way and provide better protection for victims and communities.
 
Members were reminded that a Public Spaces Protection Order identified a 
public place and prohibited specified things that could not be undertaken in that 
restricted area.

One of the changes after the introduction of Public Spaces Protection Order 
(PSPO) was to merge three powers into one, Gating Orders, Dog Control 
Orders and Designated Public Place Orders.  During the transitional period the 
current existing orders would remain in place but would need to be reviewed 
prior to October 2020.  It was noted no immediate action was required but 
signage relating to the existing orders would need to be reviewed and replaced.
  
The report set out the changes and Members of the Environment Overview and 

Page - 9



Scrutiny were asked to consider how Public Spaces Protection Orders might be 
used to address ongoing environmental issues in public spaces in accordance 
with the criteria set out in the report. 

Some areas highlighted as potential options to be consider for inclusion were:
 

 Alcohol consumption
 Dogs roaming freely or fouling/the number of dogs to be taken out at any 

one time
 Storage of household items or waste
 Wheelie bin storage
 Aggressive behaviours linked to begging, street peddling or preaching 
 Urination and defecation in public places
 Smoking in children’s play areas
 Bicycles/skateboarding
 Camping or overnight sleeping, rough sleeping

The process to be carried out was outlined in the report but there were two 
main conditions that the Council must be satisfied had been met and could be 
evidenced.

The first condition would be:

 activities carried on in a public place within the authority’s area have had 
a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or

 it was likely that activities would be carried on in a public place within 
that area and that they would have such an effect.

The second condition is that the effect, or the likely effect, of the activity
 

 was, or would likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature
 was, or would likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, 

and justifies the restrictions imposed by the order 

It would be a statutory requirement, prior to approval of a PSPO, for the Council 
to undertake formal consultation.  The Council would be required to consult 
with the Chief Officer of Police for the area; The Police and Crime 
Commissioner; Town and Parish Councils; businesses, partnerships and local 
communities and community representatives.  

A decision to commence formal consultation would also be required following 
consideration of any recommendations made by the Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Discussion took place on whether Parish Councils would be involved; fly 
tipping, fixed penalty notices; whether the PSPOs could be used to deal with 
illegal encampments; timescales of how quickly a PSPO would become 
effective; when the PSPOs would come into use and the scope of the area/ 
location that a PSPO would apply to.

It was noted that PSPOs were not a quick fix, they had to be evidence based 
and would be dealt with on a case by case basis.

Page - 10



Resolved: That the report is noted.

7. COMMERCIAL WASTE

The Cabinet Member for Environment explained that the next item was purely 
an update on the progress and intricacies of where the Commercial Waste 
Scheme.

The Executive Manager Environment referred to recent proposals to introduce 
a trade waste collection service to business customers in South Kesteven.  
Many local authorities provided a trade waste service that offered good value to 
local businesses in their areas. An opportunity had presented itself to build on 
the existing domestic waste collection services the Council provided by 
introducing a collection service to commercial organisations. 

The majority of the infrastructure for delivering this service was already in place 
and would mean co-mingling trade waste with domestic waste.  The scheme 
would be customer driven and co-mingling would make the service cost 
effective. 

There were issues around the disposal of waste but other options were also 
being considered.  The Council was currently in discussions with Lincolnshire 
County Council on ways to move this forward and Members would be kept 
informed of progress.

Resolved:  That the update is noted.  

8. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 12.30pm.

Page - 11



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Mike Exton
Chairman – Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Environment  Overview and Scrutiny Committee

18th July 2017

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Remit  LDS 223

Decision
Proposal:

N/A

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Environment

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Carol Drury Community Engagement and Policy Development 
Officer
01476 406161  c.drury@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Lucy Youles, Executive Manager, Corporate
01476 406105   l.youles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Tracey Blackwell, Strategic Director Environment and Property
01476 406 058   t.blackwell@southkesteven.gov.uk

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley Cabinet Member for Environment

SUMMARY
At its Annual Meeting of 20th April 2017 the Council determined that five Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees would be introduced to carry out the functions of policy 
development and scrutiny. It was agreed that the new Committees would develop their 
own remits and be sufficiently dynamic to respond to emerging challenges. The remit of 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee was the subject of the first meeting of 
the Committee on 23rd May 2017 and this report sets out the means by which the remit 
was developed. 

Page - 12

Agenda Item 7

mailto:c.drury@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.youles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:t.blackwell@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Members of Environment Overview and Scrutiny agree the 
remit to allow for a detailed work programme to be developed for the remainder of the 
municipal year and beyond.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT;

1.1 It was agreed at annual Council in April that a change to the functions of 
overview and scrutiny would be introduced and that five Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees would be formed to replace the existing system which had been in 
operation since 2007.

1.2 The titles of these five Overview and Scrutiny Committees were agreed at full 
Council and each Committee Chairman was tasked with working with the 
members of their appointed Committee to develop a remit that would 
encompass their purpose and topic.

1.3 At its inaugural meeting on 23rd May the Rural Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee discussed at length the topics Members felt should be covered 
which included: 

 Air Quality Action Plan
 Big Clean Initiative
 Commercial Waste Service
 Community Cleaners Scheme
 Enforcement priorities
 EnviroCrime enforcement
 Lincolnshire Municipal Waste Strategy
 Public Place Protection Orders
 Recycling Contamination – education and enforcement
 Schemes to deter dog fouling
 Street Lighting

1.4 The remit of the Cabinet Member for Environment was also considered during 
the debate to ensure that there was synchronicity between remits.

1.5 Work has been undertaken since the Committee’s meeting to develop a remit 
for inclusion within the Constitution which encapsulates all areas of the 
Committee’s discussion.  To this end it is proposed that: 

1.6 The remit of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work 
alongside Cabinet Members to assist with the development of policy and to 
scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to:

 Air Quality
 Alcohol, entertainment and leisure licensing
 Allotments
 Animal Welfare licensing
 Business Trade & Licensing

Page - 13



 CCTV
 Commercial, Industrial and Clinical Waste Collection and Management
 Dog breeding & control orders
 Domestic Waste & Recycling Management
 Energy Efficiency
 Enforcement
 Estate and Grounds Maintenance
 Flooding
 Food Hygiene and Safety
 Gambling & Lotteries licensing
 Health & Safety
 Noise
 Public Conveniences
 Renewable Energy
 Scrap Metal Dealers
 Street Lighting
 Street Services and Green Open Space Management
 Tattoo, licensing and hygiene rating system
 Taxi & private vehicle, driver and operator licensing
 Wild animal licensing

1.7 In addition the Committee will also have the right to call-in decisions as set out 
in Article 6 (6.19 Call In) and also be responsible for the overview and scrutiny 
of the Council’s budget/financial issues and Crime and Disorder responsibilities 
insofar as they are pertinent to the remit of the committee.  

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 No other options were considered

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications resulting from this report.  Any resource 
implications relating to individual items for consideration will be addressed as 
required.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
None

Page - 14



5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc)

5.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting 
from this report.  Any issues relating to individuals items for consideration will 
be address as required.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There may be financial implications arising from the content of the work remit of 
the Committee and these will be given due consideration at the appropriate 
time.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been developed as part of a 
framework to assist the development of policies and scrutiny of decisions.  The 
remit must align with relevant Cabinet functions. Any cross-over of work 
programmes will be considered by a meeting of all the Chairmen of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to determine the most appropriate 
committee/s to consider issues. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 
None

10. APPENDICES

None

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Constitution

Page - 15



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2017/18
DRAFT Work Programme

Current Issues/Status Activities and Timetable Outcome sought
Air Quality Action Plan Review of progress against 

actions and any necessary 
update to align  with 
Government Air Quality 
Strategy (Expected end July 
2017)

July/Sept 
2017

Monitor progress and 
update action plan to reflect 
any National priorities 

Big Clean Initiative – 
development of local 
clean streets standard

Web site for reporting and 
associated comms in place.
Plans progressing to deliver 
operational arrangements. 

The Big Clean is scheduled to 
be undertaken between August 
and October. The new 
standard should be set taking 
into account the experiences of 
the Big Clean project.

Oct/Nov 
2017

The definition of a local SK 
street scene standard which 
clearly sets out what can be 
expected after a street has 
been cleansed, within set 
parameters. The standard is 
to be higher than the 
national code of practice.

Community Cleaners 
Scheme

Additional funding has been 
allocated to the Community 
Cleaner Scheme in order to 
allow greater take-up. New 
initiatives have been 
proposed to support other 
community based volunteers.

A review of the scheme and its 
scope.

Sept 2017 A grant scheme in place that 
encourages best value in 
supporting high local 
cleansing standards.

Lincolnshire Municipal 
Waste Strategy

Work has commenced on 
reviewing Municipal Waste 
Strategy through the 
Lincolnshire Waste 
Partnership. This will set out 
how Lincolnshire manages 
the waste produced over the 
next 10 years.  

The partnership work will be 
completed by April 2018. 
Regular updates will be 
provided.

On-going A position where the District 
Council can support the 
overall Lincolnshire Strategy 
and its role within it.

Recycling 
Contamination – 
education and 
enforcement

Contamination is sometimes 
as high as 19%

Consider the options for 
reducing the levels of 
contamination found in the 
recycled waste.

Sept 2017 Reduced levels of 
contamination.

P
age - 16

A
genda Item

 8



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2017/18  
DRAFT Work Programme

Current Issues/Status Activities and Timetable Outcome sought
Use of DNA scheme to 
deter dog fouling

Evaluation of options Sept 2017 Recommended approach.

Street Lighting General report on current 
position completed.

July 2017 Recommended approach.

Commercial Waste 
Service

Business case produced Consider options within 
constraints now identified.

Sept 2017 Recommended approach.

Environmental 
enforcement crime

Review approach taken in 
respect of enforcement action 
(ie householders duty of care, 
who, what and when) 

Sept 2017 Recommended approach.

P
age - 17



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Environment

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

18th July 2017

Street Lighting. Report Number FM0007

Decision
Proposal:

To provide the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
details of the GF street lighting managed by the Council, current 
arrangements and potential opportunities for the future.

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Environment

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Carolyn Baker
Premises & Facilities Co-ordinator, Venues & Facilities
c.baker@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406043

Paul Stokes
Business Manager, Venues and Facilities
p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406410

Daren Turner, Strategic Director
d.turner@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406301

Cllr Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Environment

SUMMARY

The Council owns and manages a significant number of footway lights across the 
District. The Cabinet, as part of an ongoing review programme, needs to ensure that 
the provision is delivered in the most cost effective way for residents. 

There are a range of options available to potentially alter the way the Council delivers  
footway lighting, including doing nothing. Further work is required to ensure that the 
best prices are obtained and summarised to give accurate accounts of potential 
savings.

Page - 18

Agenda Item 11

mailto:c.baker@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:d.turner@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider the options available 
and, at a future meeting, review further analysis on these options in order to 
recommend a course of action to the Cabinet. 

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT;

1.1 The Council has responsibility for 3,593 footway lights across the district - this 
number excludes HRA lighting. Please see the detail in the attached appendix. 
The current energy bill is approximately £121,000pa which equates to £34 per 
light per annum.

1.2 The Council’s current maintenance contract specifically incorporates the 
following:

 Routine maintenance – the contractor shall replace all lamps cyclically 
every 3 years and all lanterns shall be cleaned as part of the same 
operation.

 Non routine maintenance – vandal damage, replacement lanterns, pole 
brackets and columns are additional to the routine maintenance cost. 

 The maintenance contract is £50,000 per annum.

2.  OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Several opportunities have been considered to reduce the current energy usage 
and also potentially the cost of the maintenance contract.  These are:

 Part night photocells can be fitted at a cost of £40 per light; these are 
estimated to save 28% of the energy consumption if lighting is switched 
off between midnight and 5:30am.  

 Install LED lighting complemented by part night photocells which are 
estimated to save 49% of the energy used.  The maintenance contract 
would cease completely with this option.

 Install time switches to each footway light which could save either of the 
above amounts dependent on the installation of LED lighting. 

 Negotiate a maintenance contract reduction on the basis of not replacing 
lights every 3 years and only replace as and when required. Re-tender 
the maintenance contract, if applicable, in line with the above potential 
changes.

All of the above are likely to incur initial one off survey costs.  Officers are 
currently determining all costs relevant to the above items for future discussion.

2.2 Stakeholder engagement will be integral to any future change in service 
provision agreed by the Cabinet.

Page - 19



3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Existing internal resource manage the footway lighting contract and 
communications with the general public in terms of fault reporting.  

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
N/A

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

This report is an update on the current position only.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

These would need to be considered should we move forward with the reduction 
in lighting hours.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

The report suggests a number of options that can be explored that may reduce 
the operational costs of providing street lighting.  A number of the options 
require a financial outlay in order to secure longer term savings.  It is important 
that each option is explored carefully in order to provide members with full 
clarity of the full implications ranging from customer impact to financial 
considerations.  Whichever option is selected, it is recommended that the 
maintenance provider market is tested on a regular basis in order to ensure 
ongoing value for money. 

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

The report suggests options that may impact on the current maintenance 
contract by terminating or seeking to alter its terms.   It is important that 
members have clarity on the terms of the current contract so they can 
understand whether there are any consequences associated with altering or 
terminating the current agreement.  Any suggestion that the Council seeks an 
alternative provider for the maintenance contract must be procured in line with 
the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.    

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

None

Page - 20



10. APPENDICES

 List of footway lighting – Appendix A

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Attached as appendix

Page - 21



Page - 22



Page - 23



Page - 24



Page - 25



Page - 26



Page - 27



Page - 28



Page - 29



Page - 30



Page - 31



Page - 32



Page - 33



Page - 34



Page - 35



Page - 36



Page - 37



Page - 38



Page - 39



Page - 40



Page - 41



Page - 42



Page - 43



Page - 44



Page - 45



Page - 46



Page - 47



Page - 48



Page - 49



Page - 50



Page - 51



Page - 52



Page - 53



Page - 54



Page - 55



Page - 56



Page - 57



Page - 58



Page - 59



Page - 60



Page - 61



Page - 62



Page - 63



Page - 64



Page - 65



Page - 66



Page - 67



Page - 68



Page - 69



Page - 70



Page - 71



Page - 72



Page - 73



Page - 74



Page - 75



Page - 76



Page - 77


	Agenda
	5 ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 23 MAY 2017
	7 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REMITS
	8 CONSIDERATION OF THE POTENTIAL WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	11 STREET LIGHTING
	Street Lighting Appendix 1


